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PART | FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ltem 1. Financial Statements.

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
MARCH 31, 200! SEPTEMBER 30, 20(
(UNAUDITED) (AUDITED)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,353,41! $ 2,998,75!
Accounts receivabl
Trade 971,70¢ 557,29!
Other, ne 381,14¢ 218,74t
Marketable securitie 6,67¢ 33,36¢
Inventories 1,207,06 368,55
Prepaid expenses and other current a 707,07 286,88
Total current asse 6,627,08. 4,463,60
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings, land and leasehold improveme 29,134,68 21,249,42
Furniture and equipment 9,853,86 5,770,18!
38,988,55. 27,019,61
Accumulated depreciatic (6,711,79) (5,654,20)
Total property and equipment, r 32,276,75 21,365,41
OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill and indefinite lived intangible 54,235,40 20,179,61
Definite lived intangibles, ne 898,71! 698,58«
Other 438,41( 368,54«
Total other asse 55,572,52 21,246,73
Total assets $ 94,476,36' $ 47,075,76

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisstents.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

MARCH 31, 200¢ SEPTEMBER 30, 20(

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl- trade $
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Other lon¢-term liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portir
Long-term dek-related partie

Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
MINORITY INTERESTS

TEMPORARY EQUITY- Common stock, subject to put rights (230,000 arsj0 shares
respectively’

PERMANENT STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.10 par, 1,000,000 shares aa#tirnone issued and outstand
Common stock, $.01 par, 15,000,000 shares autliyr&z472,206 and 6,903,354 shares issu
respectively
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (i
Retained earning
Less 908,530 shares of common stock held in trgaaticost

Total permanent stockhold’ equity

(UNAUDITED) (AUDITED)
683,74° $ 493,49
3,701,70! 1,709,42
1,549,45( 3,291,15.
5,934,90: 5,494,07!
13,827,43 4,391,49"
477,54: 420,41
21,152,67 9,011,18!
2,085,001 2,085,001
43,477,56 21,402,17
- 180,72
5,185,001 1,450,001
84,72 69,03
40,036,90 22,643,59
(6,679 20,02:
6,992,63! 2,603,98:
(1,293,78)) (1,293,78))
45 813,80 24,042,85
94,476,36 $ 47,075,76

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financissents.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues
Sales of alcoholic beverag
Sales of food and merchand
Service revenue
Internet revenue
Other

Total revenue

Operating expense

Cost of goods sol

Salaries and wage

Stock compensatia

Other general and administrati\
Taxes and permit
Charge card fee
Rent
Legal and profession
Advertising and marketin
Insurance
Utilities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other
Total operating expenses

Income from operation

Other income (expense
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Minority interests
Income before income tax
Income taxes

Net income

Basic and diluted earnings per shs
Net income, basi
Net income, diluter
Weighted average number of common shares outsigr
Basic
Diluted

FOR THE THREE MONTHS
ENDED MARCH 31,

200¢ 2007
(UNAUDITED)

FOR THE SIX MONTHE
ENDED MARCH 31,

200¢ 2007
(UNAUDITED)

$ 570293 $ 2,812,400 $ 9,898,112 $ 5,407,00.
1,325,58! 768,62 2,385,91 1,432,71!
7,748,51. 3,538,01 12,772,01 6,889,81!
172,71: 177,50: 343,50: 365,48:
514,51! 273,03 1,019,04: 504,33:
15,464,26 7,569,58' 26,418,59 14,599,34
1,633,22 962,46¢ 2,975,05! 1,853,63
3,297,15i 2,156,05. 5,883,63. 4,227,19;
39,27( 65,35¢ 78,54( 130,71:
2,018,86! 981,32 3,254,65: 1,854,27.
254,26: 137,50 452,97 281,50
618,67 396,04( 1,083,13; 749,27.
349,86: 248,41 643,23 487,27
563,60¢ 325,02 924,44; 683,79
166,93 180,81 368,32 309,26!
281,49¢ 204,08: 491,23 370,50:
646,12 386,42 1,157,461 751,02
1,231,06. 798,90 2,170,29! 1,587,17
11,100,54 6,842,42 19,482,98 13,285,62
4,363,71. 727,16: 6,935,61 1,313,72
26,40: 2,42 69,47 13,05¢
(676,67 (328,45)  (1,138,55) (654,01)

- 91,21 177,91 172,20
3,713,44. 492 34 6,044,43i 844,96«
1,108,06. - 1,655,78 -

$ 260538 $ 49234 $ 438865 $ 844,96

$ 03¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 061 $ 0.1€

$ 03: $ 0.0¢ $ 0.5 $ 0.1F
7,561,16: 5,365,60; 7,183,69! 5,253,541
8,473,49 5,647,44; 8,012,74! 5,540,23:

Comprehensive income for the three months endeaiMat, 2008 and 2007 were $2,594,257 and $505&% for the six months we
$4,361,957 and $842,739, respectively. This inedutthe changes in available-for-sale securitiesn@héhcome.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisdsents.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praVviole operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic

Deferred taxe

Bad debt:

Amortization of note discout

Beneficial conversiol

Minority interests

Deferred rent:

Common stock issued for interest paynm
Stock options issued for employee servi
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Cash provided by operating activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of prope
Additions to property and equipme
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Payments from notes receivable

Cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of common stt
Proceeds from stock options exerci:
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Payments on long-term debt

Cash provided by financing activiti

NET INCREASE IN CASF
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AT END OF PERIOD

CASH PAID DURING PERIOD FOR
Interest

Income taxe:

Non-cash transactions:

FOR THE SIX MONTHE
ENDED MARCH 31,

200¢ 2007
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
$  4,38865 $ 844,96«
1,157,46 751,02
158,26 -

- 14,98¢

17,77¢ 17,77¢

8,97¢ 8,97¢
(177,91) (172,20)
58,77¢ 61,30

43,36¢ 50,047

78,54( 130,71:
701,80: (404,219)
6,435,71. 1,303,37.
36,00( 9,69t
(1,737,53) (432,73)
(18,986,37) (500,00()
63,99 11,13
(20,623,91) (911,909
14,976,70 5,345,50!
168,70 588,47:
2,000,001 600,00(
(2,602,54) (1,269,69)
14,542 85 5,064,28'
354,65 5,655,75;
2,998,75: 854,93:

$ 335341 $ _ 6,510,68
$  1,03827 $ 574,85:

$ 565,98¢ $

On October 4, 2006, the seller of the New York atalnverted $75,000 of principal from the relatedmissory note into 10,000 share!

restricted common stock.

During October 2006, the Company purchased a 51#ewship interest of Playmates Gentlense@lub LLC for $1,533,750, payable w

$500,000 cash at closing and 125,000 shares oictest common stock.

In November 2006, the holder of a convertible débenconverted $25,023 of interest owed into 5,868es of restricted common stock
March 2007, $125,576 of principal and interest waneverted into 26,437 shares of restricted comstock.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsents.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Non-cash transactions (continued):

In December 2006, the Company foreclosed on agesal house due to ngmayment of a note receivable from an unrelated tharty. Th
balance of the note receivable was $ 55,175.

On November 30, 2007, the Company purchased TostSiabaret in Florida for $25,486,000 (which inckideventories and other asse
payable to the sellers $15,486,000 in cash, $100000pursuant to two secured promissory notes énatmount of $5,000,000 each,
estimated transaction costs of $125,000.

In November 2007, the holder of a convertible détmenconverted $713,807 of principal and interesed into 150,134 shares of restric
common stock.

In February 2008, the holder of a convertible détnenconverted $21,918 of interest owed into 1 82&es of restricted common stock.
In February 2008, the Company purchased an airitnafigh the issuance of a note payable of $1,961,5

On March 31, 2008, in connection with the acquisitof the remaining 49% of its Austin, Texas cltiie Company issued 35,000 comtr
shares valued at $700,000.

On March 31, 2008, the Company purchased CrazyeHbo® Cabaret in Philadelphia for $7,985,000 payablthe Sellers $3,500,00C
cash and $4,485,000 pursuant to the issuance ¢gdd®Shares of restricted common stock.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financteistents
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008
(UNAUDITED)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited financial statements haen prepared in accordance with accountingiple@scgenerally accepted in the Un
States of America for interim financial informati@amd with the instructions to Form 10-QSB and Ratoh SB. They do not include
information and footnotes required by accountinghgiples generally accepted in the United StatesAoferica for complete financi
statements. However, except as disclosed hetene thas been no material change in the informatisciosed in the notes to the finan
statements for the year ended September 30, 2@0®ed in the Company's Annual Report on FornrK8R, as filed with the Securities
Exchange Commission. The interim unaudited finalrstiatements should be read in conjunction witis¢hfinancial statements included in
Form 10KSB. In the opinion of management, all adjustmeuatssidered necessary for a fair presentation,istimg solely of normal recurrit
adjustments, have been made. Operating resultedahree months and the six months ended MarcB(I8 are not necessarily indicativ
the results that may be expected for the year gnsl@ptember 30, 2008.

2. RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

In 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 KtFI8"), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertaintyimcome taxes recognized in an enterped@iancia
statements in accordance with SFAS 109. FIN 48 ptsscribes a recognition threshold and measureattibute for the financial statem:
recognition and measurement of a tax position takeexpected to be taken in a tax return. FIN A&vides guidance on decognition
classification, interest and penalties, accountimgnterim periods, disclosure and transition. Te@mpany adopted FIN 48 as of Octobe
2007, as required.

The current Company policy classifies any interestognized on an underpayment of income taxes tasest expense and classifies
statutory penalties recognized on a tax positiogerseral and administrative expense. There wamteoest and an insignificant amoun
general and administrative expenses recognizedecel®m income taxes for the three months and sintheended March 31, 2008. -
Company has not taken a tax position that woulcehawmaterial effect on the financial statementthereffective tax rate for the three mot
and six months ended March 31, 2008 or during the three years applicable under FIN 48. It issdmined not to be reasonably possible
the amounts of unrecognized tax benefits to sigamifily increase or decrease within 12 months ofatth@ption of FIN 48. The Company
currently subject to a three year statute of litiotas by major tax jurisdictions.

3. STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Below is the summary of common stock options outditeg as of March 31, 2008:

Options Options Options Available for
Employee and Director Stock Option Pl Authorized Outstanding Vested Grant
1999 Stock Option Pla 1,500,001 505,00( 435,00( 438,00(

Employee and Director Stock Option Plans

In August 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 S@yution Plan (“the Plan”)The options granted under the Plan may be eithamitive
stock options, or non-qualified options. The Akadministered by the Board of
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008

3. STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION - continued

Directors or by a compensation committee of therBad Directors. The Board of Directors has thelesive power to select individuals
receive grants, to establish the terms of the aptgranted to each participant, provided that ptioms granted shall be granted at an exe
price equal to at least 85% of the fair market gadfithe common stock covered by the option orgtiaat date and to make all determinat
necessary or advisable under the Plan. The opmmsubject to termination of employment and gaheexpire five years from the date
grant. Employee options generally vest in instalits over two years. As of March 31, 2008, 438 §fires of common stock were avalil:
for future grants under the Plan.

Accounting Treatment

Effective October 1, 2006, the Company adopteddhesalue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123Fhare-Based Payments,” using thi
modified prospective application method. Undes th@nsition method, compensation cost recogniaethe three and six months ended M.
31, 2008 and 2007, includes the applicable amaonint&) compensation of all stoddased payments granted prior to, but not yet vesdea
October 1, 2006 (based on the greate fair value estimated in accordance with thgirtal provisions of SFAS 123 and previously prdee
in pro forma footnote disclosures), and (b) compéina cost for all stockased payments granted subsequent to October @,i2G@d on tt
grantdate fair value estimated in accordance with the pevisions of SFAS No. 123R. Results for peripdsr to October 1, 2006, have
been restated. The compensation cost recognizédddhree months ended March 31, 2008 and 200@ $&9,270 and $65,356, respectiv
and for the six months ended March 31, 2008 and’ 206re $78,540 and $130,712, respectively, as @tret implementing SFAS N
123R. There were 5,000 and 40,000 stock optionceses for the three months and six months endediMzl, 2008, respectively.

The Company used the Bla8choles Option Pricing Model to determine the failue of option grants. The Company estimatedatherag
holding period of vested options to be three yéams the vesting period, using the simplified methd here were no stock option grants
the three and six month periods ended March 318.200

Stock Option Activity

The following is a summary of all stock option tsaations for the six months ended March 31, 2008:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Pric Term (Years Value
Outstanding as of October 1, 2C 545,000 $ 3.61
Granted at market pric -
Granted above market pri -
Cancelled or expire -
Exercisec (40,000 4.2z
Outstanding as of March 31, 2008 505,000 $ 3.57 1.6C ¢ 9,748,701

Options exercisable as of March 31, 2! 435,000 $ 2.6 1.4¢ ¢ 8,805,80
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Below is the financial information related to ther@pany’s segments:

FOR THE THREE MONTH FOR THE SIX MONTH¢
ENDED MARCH 31 ENDED MARCH 31
200¢ 2007 200¢ 2007
REVENUES

Club operation: $ 1529154 $ 7,392,08 $ 26,075,099 $ 14,233,86
Internet websites 172,71. 177,50: 343,50: 365,48:
$ 15464,26 $ 756958 $ 26,41859 $ 14,599,34

NET INCOME
Club operation: $ 4,692,190 $ 1,316,85 $ 7,940,86. $ 2,399,29
Internet website 15,47¢ 5,96: 29,64* 31,10(
Corporate expenst (2,102,28) (830,479 (3,581,85) (1,585,43)

$ 260538 $ 492,34 $ 4,388,65 $ 844,96«

5. LONG-TERM DEBT

On November 9, 2006, the Company entered into atiblee debentures with three shareholders for aggal sum of $600,000. The tern
for two years and the interest rate is 12% per annAt the election of the holders, the holdersenhthe right at any time to convert all or
portion of the principal or interest amount of thebentures into shares of the Comparsgmmon stock at a rate of $7.50 per share, wihias
higher than the closing price of the Compangtock on November 9, 2006. The debentures pepwdtsent shareholder approval, tha
number of shares of the Compasmycommon stock that may be issued by the Comparacquired by the holders upon conversion o
debentures shall not exceed 19.99% of the totabeurof issued and outstanding shares of the Compamynmon stock. The proceeds of
debentures were used for the acquisition of a 5dfteeship interest of Playmates Gentlemen'’s Club LLC

On October 12, 2007, the Company borrowed $1,0@0fAfn an investment company under terms of a 10#vertible debenture. Inter
only is payable quarterly until the principal plascrued interest is due in nine equal quarterlyngayts beginning in October 2008.
debenture is subject to optional redemption at ttmg after 366 days from the date of issuance 80d0f the principal face amount p
accrued interest. The debenture plus any outstgntbnvertible interest is convertible by the hologo shares of our common stock at
time prior to the maturity date at the conversioitg of $12 per share. The value of the embedasficial conversion feature on the r
payable was calculated using the EITF Issue No5,98ecounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or
Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios . For the six months ended March 31, 2008, intezgpense related to the value of the embe
beneficial conversion feature was not significant.

In November 2007, the holder of a convertible délnenelected to convert $713,807 of principal ameriest owed into 150,134 shares of
Company'’s restricted common stock.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008

5. LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

On November 30, 2007, in connection with the adtjoisof Tootsie’s Cabaret (see Note 9), the Conypamtered into two secured promiss
notes in the amount of $5,000,000 each to therseftee "Notes"). The Notes bear interest at the od 14% per annum with the princi
payable in one lump sum payment on November 300.2@terest on the Notes is payable monthly, reans, with the first payment due th
(30) days after the closing of the transaction,clvhbccurred on November 30, 2007. The Company dgmmegay the Notes during the fi
twelve (12) months; thereafter, the Company mapayedhe Notes, in whole or in part, provided thpafy prepayment by the Company fi
December 1, 2008 through November 30, 2009, sleafidid at a rate of 110% of the original principadount and (ii) any prepayment by
Company after November 30, 2009, may be prepaidowttpenalty at a rate of 100% of the original pif@l amount.

Effective February 1, 2008, the Company borrowe®®1,000 from a lender. The funds were utilizegay off certain other Company deb
the amount of $1,797,529. The new debt bearsdstett 9% and interest is payable monthly untilr&ety 1, 2013 at which time the princi
is due in full. The note is collateralized by eémtCompany-owned property in Minneapolis, Minnasot

In February 2008, the holder of a convertible déenconverted $21,918 of principal and interesedwto 1,826 shares of restricted com
stock.

In February 2008, the Company borrowed $1,561,50f fa lender. The funds were used to purchaseramfa The debt bears interes
6.15% with monthly principal and interest paymeoft$11,323 beginning March 12, 2008. The note meston February 12, 2028.

6. TEMPORARY EQUITY

Through March 31, 2008, 215,000 shares of the Cogipacommon stock valued at $1,450,000 were reclagsffiom temporary equity
permanent equity, as the holders of the put omald such shares on the open market.

In connection with the acquisition of the Companihiladelphia club on March 31, 2008, the Compasyed 195,000 common shares wi
put option at $23.00 per share (see Note 9).

In connection with the acquisition of the remain#@b6 of the Companyg’Austin club on March 31, 2008, the Company is2&800 commc
shares with a put option at $20.00 per share (ste 9.

7. COMMON STOCK

On November 19, 2007, the Company completed a teriplacement of equity securities solely to acd¢estlinvestors. Pursuant to the pri
placement, the Company issued 1,165,000 shardseo€bmpanys restricted common stock at a price of $14.00gbare for a total gro
offering price of $16,310,000 with net proceedsapproximately $15,000,000 to the Company after egps. Pursuant to the terms of
transaction, the Company filed a registration shetet on February 14, 2008, which became effectivEebruary 27, 2008. The offer and
of the common stock was made pursuant to exempfions the registration requirements of the Act piarst to Section 4(2) and Rule 50¢
Regulation D promulgated thereunder. All of theecffand sales of the common stock were made exelygd “accredited investorsag suc
term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D)fifers and sales not involving a public offerinfhe purchasers purchased the securitie
their own account and not with a view towards arrésale. The private placement was conducted witgeneral solicitation or advertising.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The Company computes earnings per share in acamdaith Statement of Financial Accounting Standdt8&AS") No. 128,Earnings Per
Share. SFAS No. 128 provides for the calculation ofibad diluted earnings per share. Basic earniegshare includes no dilution an
computed by dividing income available to commoncklmlders by the weighted average number of comstmres outstanding for f
period. Diluted earnings per share reflect theptil dilution of securities that could sharehe earnings of the Company.

Potential common stock shares consist of sharéathg arise from outstanding dilutive common stegkrants and options (the numbe
which is computed using the “treasury stock methaaitl from outstanding convertible debentures (thrabrr of which is computed using
“if converted method”). Diluted EPS considers ti@ential dilution that could occur if the Compasigutstanding common stock warra
options and convertible debentures were convereml gommon stock that then shared in the Com@apgrnings (as adjusted for inte
expense, that would no longer occur if the debestwere converted).

Net earnings applicable to common stock and theghted — average number of shares used for basic and dileéedings per she
computations are summarized in the table thatviallo

10
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) - continued

FOR THE THREE MONTH FOR THE SIX MONTH¢
ENDED MARCH 31 ENDED MARCH 31
200¢ 2007 200¢ 2007
Basic earnings per shai

Net earnings applicable to common stockhols $ 260538 $ 492,34: $ 4,388,65 $ 844,96:
Average number of common shares outstanding 7,561,16. 5,365,60. 7,183,69! 5,253,541
Basic earnings per share $ 03/ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.61 $ 0.1¢€

Diluted earnings per shat
Net earnings applicable to common stockhol $ 2,60538 $ 492,34: $ 4,388,65 $ 844,96

Adj. to net earnings from assumed conversion otdalres (1) 87,48: -- 125,10( --

Adj. net earnings for diluted EPS computation $ 2,692,86. $ 492,34 $ 4513,75 $ 844,96
Average number of common shares outstanc

Common shares outstandi 7,561,16: 5,365,60. 7,183,69! 5,253,54

Potential dilutive shares resulting from exercisaarrants and option:

2 403,04 281,84( 403,09: 286,68
Potential dilutive shares resulting from conversibidebentures (- 509,28’ -- 425,95¢ --
Total average number of common shares outstandied for dilution 8,473,49 5,647,44. 8,012,74! 5,540,23.

Diluted earnings per sha $ 032z $ 0.0¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.1f

(1) Represents interest expense on dilutive cdifverdebentures, that would not occur if they wassumed converted.

(2) All outstanding warrants and options were @dered for the EPS computation.

(3) Convertible debentures (principal and accrusgrest) outstanding at March 31, 2008 and 200alingt $3,088,015 and $3,000,4
respectively, were convertible into common stoclagirice from $3.00 to $12.00 per share in 2008 $8100 to $7.50 per share in 2C
respectively, and resulted in additional commorraehgbased on average balances outstanding). tRbtitutive shares of 78,234 for the
months ended March 31, 2008 have been excludeddernings per share due to being anti-dilutive.

11
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008

9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

On October 11, 2006, the Company sold its propeitieWise County for $165,000, which was the vadfighe properties included in t
Company’s balance sheet at September 30, 2006rafterding an impairment charge of $68,134 in Saptr 2006.

On November 10, 2006, the Company purchased a 5dfership interest of Playmates Gentlense@lub LLC, an operator of an ac
nightclub in Austin, Texas. The club is located®&i0 Springdale Street. The purchase price &3Rl750 was paid $500,000 cash at clc
and 125,000 shares of the Company'’s restricted aamstock, valued at $8.27 per share in accordaritteBATF 99-12,Determination of the
Measurement Date for the Market Price of Acquirer Securities Issued in a Purchase Business Combination . The club has been converted
Rick’s Austin. As part of the agreement, twelve morsdfier the closing date, the seller has the right, ot the obligation, to have 1
Company buy the shares at a price of $8.00 pee<itaa rate of no more than 5,000 shares per morthsuch time as the seller receive
total of $1,000,000 from the sale of such shardterAatively, the seller has the option to selltssbares in the open market. The transa
was the result of arms-length negotiations betwherparties.

The following information summarizes the initialaation of fair values assigned to the assetsliabdities atthe acquisition date based c
preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments mayrecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.

Property and equipme $ 633,41
Non-compete agreeme 175,00(
Goodwill 725,33¢
Net assets acquire $ 1,533,75

The results of operations of this acquired entitpm November 10, 2006 to March 31, 2008, are idetl in the Compang’ results ¢
operations, with minority interest offsetting suelsults in the accompanying balance sheet.

Proforma results of operations have not been peakids the amounts were not deemed material toahsolidated financial statements.
transaction follows the Company’s growth strategy.

On April 23, 2007, the Company completed a tratisador the purchase of 100% of the outstandingnemn stock of W.K.C., Inc., a Te»
corporation (the "Business"), which owned and ofgeran adult entertainment cabaret known as Newadsl Nights ("New Orleans Night
located in Fort Worth, Texas. Pursuant to theksfmorchase agreement, the Company acquired then@ssfor a total cash purchase pric
$4,900,000. As part of the transaction, the salidgered a fiverear covenant not to compete with the CompanyherBusiness. In additic
RCI Holdings, Inc., the Compars/'wholly owned subsidiary ("RCI"), entered into assignment of that certain real estate sales ao
between the owner of the property and W.K.C., facthe purchase of the real property located &tl7Galmont, Fort Worth, Texas 76116 1
"Real Property") where New Orleans Nights is lodater a total purchase price of $2,500,000, whiohnsisted of $100,000 in cash
$2,400,000 payable in a six year promissory notiliéasellers which will accrue interest at the 1@it§.25% for the first two years, 8.25%
years three and four and 9.25% thereafter (the miiRsory Note"). The Promissory Note is securedabyleed of trust and secu
agreement. Further, RCI entered into an assigniemethtassumption of lease agreement with the sebleassume the lease agreement fo
Real Property.

12




Table of Contents
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS - continued

The following information summarizes the allocatwfrfair values assigned to the assets and liggslet the acquisition date.

Net current asse $ 30,48¢
Property and equipme 2,968,12
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 1,628,55!
SOB license: 4,401,51:
Deferred tax liability (1,628,55)
Net assets acquire $ 7,500,122

The results of operations of this acquired entityiacluded in the Company’s results of operatisinse April 24, 2007.

The following unaudited pro forma information pretethe results of operations as if the acquisitiad occurred as of the beginning of
immediate preceding period. The pro forma infoiorais not necessarily indicative of what would dasccurred had the acquisition b
made as of such periods, nor is it indicative dfife results of operations. The pro forma amogius effect to appropriate adjustments for
fair value of the assets acquired, amortizatiomtaingibles and interest expense.

FOR THE THREE MONTH FOR THE SIX MONTH¢
ENDED MARCH 31 ENDED MARCH 31

200¢ 2007 200¢ 2007
Revenue! $ 1546426 $ 8,821,961 $ 26,41859 $ 16,994,39
Net income $ 2,60538 $ 809,46. $ 4,388,65 $ 1,375,95
Net income per sha~ basic $ 03¢ % 0.1: $ 061 $ 0.2t
Net income per sha- diluted $ 03z $ 0.1z $ 0.5€¢ $ 0.2z
Weighted average shares outstane basic 7,561,16: 6,040,60: 7,183,69! 5,928,54
Weighted average shares outstanc diluted 8,473,49 6,322,44. 8,012,74! 6,215,23

On May 10, 2007, the Company entered into a Licensigreement with Rick’s Buenos Aires Sociedad Amn(“Licensee”),a corporatio
organized under the laws of Argentina. The Compagreed to grant Licensee a license for use antbieagon of the Compang’ logos
trademarks and service marks for the operation rofadult entertainment facility in the city of Buend\ires, Argentina, and Lal
America. Pursuant to the agreement, Licensee ddoepay the Company a royalty fee equal to 109ro$s revenues of Licensedjusines
net of any value added tax. No club has opened tids time, but plans are for a location to off@nbusiness by the end of the third quartt
2008.
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS — continued

On November 30, 2007, the Company entered intooakSPurchase Agreement for the acquisition of 1Qff%he issued and outstand
common stock of Stellar Management Corporationloaida corporation (the "Stellar Stock™") and 100%4te issued and outstanding comr
stock of Miami Garden Square One, Inc., a Floridgooration (the "MGSO Stock") which owns and opesaan adult entertainment cab
known as "Tootsie’s Cabaret" ("Toots#) located at 150 NW 183rd Street, Miami Gardéitstida 33169 (the "Transaction"). Pursuant tc
Stock Purchase Agreement, the Company acquireStiiar Stock and the MGSO Stock from Norman Hicken@Hickmore") and Richa
Stanton ("Stanton") for a total purchase price 26,886,000 (which includes inventory and other @3spayable to the sellers $15,486,0C
cash, $10,000,000 pursuant to two secured pronyissates in the amount of $5,000,000 each to StaatwhHickmore (the "Notes"), pl
estimated transaction costs of $125,000. The Neitbear interest at the rate of 14% per annunhulite principal payable in one lump <
payment on November 30, 2010. Interest on the Noiéde payable monthly, in arrears, with the fippyment being due thirty (30) days &
the closing of the Transaction. The Company capm®pay the Notes during the first twelve (12) monthgreafter, the Company may pre
the Notes, in whole or in part, provided that flyarepayment by the Company from December 1, 2068igh November 30, 2009, shall
paid at a rate of 110% of the original principaleamt and (ii) any prepayment by the Company aftevédnber 30, 2009, may be pref
without penalty at a rate of 100% of the originghpipal amount. The Notes are secured by the&t8ilock and MGSO Stock under a Ple
and Security Agreement. As part of the Transactitibkmore and Stanton entered into figgar covenants not to compete with the Comg
Additionally, as part of the Transaction, the Compa&ntered into Assignment to Lease Agreements thighlandlord for the property wht
Tootsies is located. The underlying lease agreementh&optoperty provide for an original lease term tigto June 30, 2014, with two opt
periods which give the Company the right to ledse groperty through June 30, 2034. The terms anditons of the transaction were
result of extensive arm's length negotiations betwbe parties.

The following information summarizes the initialaation of fair values assigned to the assetsliabdities at the acquisition date based «
preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments tayrecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.

Netcurrent assel $ 390,00(
Property and equipment and other as 4,919,001
Non-compete agreeme 200,00(
Goodwill 7,437,741
SOB license: 20,102,00
Deferred tax liability (7,437,74)
Net assets acquire $ 25,611,00

The results of operations of this acquired entigyiacluded in the Company’s results of operatisinse December 1, 2007.

The following unaudited pro forma information pretethe results of operations as if the acquisitiad occurred as of the beginning of
immediate preceding period. The pro forma infoiorais not necessarily indicative of what would @axccurred had the acquisition b
made as of such periods, nor is it indicative ¢fife results of operations. The pro forma amogiws effect to appropriate adjustments for
fair value of the assets acquired, amortizatiomtangibles and interest expense.
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS - continued

FOR THE THREE MONTH
ENDED MARCH 31

FOR THE SIX MONTH¢
ENDED MARCH 31

200¢ 2007 200¢ 2007
Revenue! $ 15,464,26 $ 11,803,41 $ 29,38525 $ 23,066,99
Net income $ 2,60538 $ 1,82956 $ 4,732,377 $ 3,519,401
Net income per sha~ basic $ 03¢ % 0.2t $ 0.66 $ 0.5t
Net income per sha- diluted $ 03z $ 027 $ 05¢ $ 0.52
Weighted average shares outstane basic 7,561,16: 6,530,60: 7,183,69! 6,418,541
Weighted average shares outstanc- diluted 8,473,49 6,812,44. 8,012,74! 6,705,23.

The following unaudited pro forma information pretethe results of operations as if the acquisitioh W.K.C., Inc. and Miami Garde
Square One, Inc. had occurred as of the beginritiggdmmediate preceding period. The pro fornfarimation is not necessarily indicative
what would have occurred had the acquisition beadaras of such periods, nor is it indicative otifatresults of operations. The pro fo
amounts give effect to appropriate adjustmentshierfair value of the assets acquired, amortizatidntangibles and interest expense.

FOR THE THREE MONTH FOR THE SIX MONTH¢

ENDED MARCH 31

ENDED MARCH 31

200¢ 2007 200¢ 2007
Revenue! $ 15,464,26 $ 13,055,79 $ 29,385,25 $ 25,462,04
Net income $ 2,60538 $ 2,463,79 $ 4,732,377 $ 4,050,40.
Net income per sha~ basic $ 03¢ % 03¢ % 0.6€ $ 0.517
Net income per shar- diluted $ 03z $ 03 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.5t
Weighted average shares outstane basic 7,561,16: 7,205,60: 7,183,69! 7,093,541
Weighted average shares outstanc- diluted 8,473,49 7,487,44. 8,012,74! 7,380,23.
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9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS — continued

On March 31, 2008, the Company’s wholly owned sidibsy, RCI Entertainment (Philadelphia), Inc. (tHeurchaser”)completed th
acquisition of 100% of the issued and outstandihgres of common stock (the “TEZ Sharesf) The End Zone, Inc., a Pennsylve
corporation (the “Corporation”) which owns and agtes “Crazy Horse Too Cabaret” (the “Clubddcated at 2908 South Columbus BI
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19148 (the “Real Prigpefrom Vincent Piazza (the “Seller”). As part the transaction, the Compasywholly
owned subsidiary, RCI Holdings, Inc. (“RCI Holdiripacquired from the Piazza Family Limited Partingps(the “Partnership Seller§1% o
the issued and outstanding partnership interest ‘@artnership Interestsih TEZ Real Estate, LP, a Pennsylvania limited neenghip (th
“Partnership”) and 51% of the issued and outstapdirembership interest (the “Membership Interesie”TEZ Management, LLC,
Pennsylvania limited liability company, which istheneral partner of the Partnership (the “Gerfeaainer”). The Partnership owns the R
Property where the Club is located. At closings tbompany paid a purchase price of $3,500,000 $h ¢ar the Partnership Interests
Membership Interests, and issued 195,000 sharthe @tompany’s restricted common stock (the “Ricsres”) for the TEZ Shares.

As part of the transaction, the Company entereal ént.ock-Up/Leakout Agreement with the Seller pursuant to which,oorafter one ye:
after the closing date, the Seller shall have itetrbut not the obligation, to have Rick’s pursédrom Seller 5,000 Ric&’Shares per mor
(the “Monthly Shares”), calculated at a price pears equal to $23.00 (“Value of the Rick's Share#} the Companys election during ar
given month, the Company may either buy the Mon8tiares or, if the Company elects not to buy thatiy Shares from the Seller, then
Seller shall sell the Monthly Shares in the operkeia Any deficiency between the amount which 8dler receives from the sale of
Monthly Shares and the Value of the Rel&hares shall be paid by the Company within ti{8@ebusiness days of the date of sale o
Monthly Shares during that particular month. Tham@anys obligation to purchase the Monthly Shares from Seller shall terminate a
cease at such time as the Seller has receivedlaofd§4,485,000 from the sale of the RelShares and any deficiency. As of March 31, -
the 195,000 shares of restricted common stock wlessified on the consolidated balance sheet apdeary equity in accordance with El
Topic D-98,Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities .

Additionally, at closing, the Seller and the Parshép Seller entered a fiwear agreement not to compete with the Companyirwahwent)
(20) mile radius of the Club. Finally, the Corparatentered into a new lease agreement with then®ahip giving it the right to lease the F
Property for twenty (20) years (“Original Term”)tWian option for an additional nine (9) years efe{El) eleven months (“Option Termi)ith
rent payable at the rate of (i) $50,000 per mosiiject to adjustment for increases in the Consuiniee Index (CPI) every five years dur
the Original Term and the Option Term, or (ii) 8%gooss sales, whichever is higher. The maximueoneiase in the CPI for any five (5) y
period shall be 15%.

The following information summarizes the initialaation of fair values assigned to the assetsliabdities at the acquisition date based «

preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments tayrecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.

16




Table of Contents

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008

9. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS — continued

Net current asse $ 60,00(
Property and equipment and other as 3,882,88!
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 1,458,58:
SOB license: 3,942,11!
Deferred tax liability 1,458,58)
Net assets acquire $ 7,985,00

On March 31, 2008, the Company'’s subsidiary, RQeEainment (Austin), Inc. (“RCI")¢ompleted the acquisition of 49% of the membe
interest of Playmates Gentlemen’s Club, LLC (“Playes”) from Behzad Bahrami (“Sellergsulting in 100% ownership by the Compan
RCI. Playmates owns an adult entertainment calbain as “Playmates” (the “Clubidpcated at 8110 Springdale Road, Austin, Texas 4
(the “Premises”).Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, RCI aaadal purchase price of $1,401,711 which wad $a01,711 in ca:
and debt forgiveness at the time of closing andigkeance of 35,000 shares of the Compamgstricted common stock valued at $20.0(
share (the “Shares”). For accounting purposesCiirapanys investment is only $751,000, due to the previoases of the minority intere
which have been expensed. The investment hasasségmed to goodwill.

Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreemerdr after one year after the closing date, theeBshall have the right, but not the obliga
to have the Company purchase from Seller 5,000eShper month (the “Monthly Shares8alculated at a price per share equal to $:
(“Value of the Shares”). Seller shall notify ther@Gpany during any given month of its election tat'Pthe Monthly Shares to the Compi
during that particular month. At the Compasglection during any given month, the Company migtyer buy the Monthly Shares or, if
Company elects not to buy the Monthly Shares frbenSeller, then the Seller shall sell the Monthihai®s in the open market. Any deficie
between the amount which the Seller receives filoenstle of the Monthly Shares and the Value ofShares shall be paid by the Comg
within three (3) business days of the date of efithe Monthly Shares during that particular monithe Companys obligation to purchase 1
Monthly Shares from the Seller shall terminate ardse at such time as the Seller has receivedabdb®700,000 from the sale of -
Shares. As of March 31, 2008, the 35,000 shareestficted common stock were classified on thesobdated balance sheet as tempc
equity in accordance with EITF Topic D-98lassification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities.

In the event the Seller elects not to “Put” ther8hdo the Company, the Seller shall not sell ntioa@ 10,000 Shares during any @&y periol

in the open market, provided that Seller compliéh \Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933, as adeeh) in connection with his sale of
Shares.
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10. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense for the years presented differa the “expected’federal income tax expense computed by applyingutg feder:
statutory rate of 34% to earnings before incomegdwr the three and six months ended March 318 20@ 2007 as a result of the following:

FOR THE THREE MONTHS FOR THE SIX MONTHE

ENDED MARCH 31, ENDED MARCH 31,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Computed expected tax expel $ 126257 $ 167,390 $ 2,055,12, $ 287,28t
State income taxe 111,40¢ 14,77( 181,33 25,34¢
Stock option disqualifying dispositions and othermanen
differences (44,55() (182,167 (312,679 (312,63
Net operating loss carryforwar (284,494 - (284,49 --
Effect of rate increase on deferred tax liabi 63,13¢ -- 16,50! --
Total income tax expen: $ 1,108,060 $ - $ 165578 $ -

Included in the Compang’deferred tax liabilities at March 31, 2008 is 8D2,000 representing the tax effect of indefitited intangible
assets from club acquisitions which are not deblectior tax purposes. These deferred tax liabgitwill remain in the Company’balanc
sheet until the related clubs are sold.

11. LITIGATION
SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESS ORDINANCE OF HOUSTON, ™AS

In January 1997, the City Council of the City ofddton passed a comprehensive new Ordinance reguldie location of and the cond
within Sexually Oriented Businesses (the “Ordindhc@he Ordinance established new minimum distancesSfrually Oriented Busines:
may be located from schools, churches, playgrowams$ other sexually oriented businesses. There wer@rovisions in the Ordinan
exempting previously permitted sexually orientedibasses from the effect of the new Ordinance.

The Ordinance provided that a business which wagedea renewal of its operating permit due to clesnig distance requirements undel
Ordinance would be entitled to continue in operafar a period of time (the “Amortization Periodfthe owner were unable to recoup, by
effective date of the Ordinance, its investmentthe business that was incurred through the dat¢hefpassage and approval of
Ordinance. The Company’s nightclub in the Comparsouth Houston location had a valid temporary fdicense. The permits for t
Company’s north Houston location and our BeringvBtbcation have expired.

In May 1997, the City of Houston agreed to defeplementation of the Ordinance until the constitndility of the entire Ordinance w
decided by court trial. In February 1998, the Wsstrict Court for the Southern District of Texddpuston Division, struck down cert
provisions of the Ordinance, including the prouvisimandating a 1,500 foot distance between a clabsahools, churches and other sext
oriented businesses, leaving intact the provisiotin® 750 foot distance as it existed prior to @relinance. The City of Houston appealec
District Court’s rulings with the Fifth Circuit Couof Appeals.
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11. LITIGATION - continued

In November 2003, a three judge panel from thehRtfircuit Court of Appeals published their Opiniahich affirmed the Trial Cours ruling
regarding lighting levels, customer and dancer i distances and licensing of dancers and.sfdfe Court of Appeals, however, did
follow the Trial Courts ruling regarding the distance from which a cluyrbe located from a church or school. The Cou#ppeals held thi
a distance measurement of 1,500 feet would be dpif@n a showing by the City of Houston that iirals that there were alternative <
available for relocating clubs could be substaatlat The case was remanded for trial on the iss alternative sites.

The trial commenced on December 4, 2006 and coadloth December 12, 2006. The Trial Court rendésgddgment in favor of the City
Houston on January 31, 2007. The Trial Court fotlvad the City of Houston met its burden that theege sufficient alternate sites availabl
relocate all of the existing businesses in 199Fe Trial Court found the 1997 ordinance constingicand enforceable. Pdsial motions wer
heard and the relief sought, a stay against enfogog was denied by the Trial Court. An appeatht Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals w
timely filed. The Fifth Circuit granted a stagmiling appeal. Oral argument was held before tiftle Eircuit Court of Appeals on August
2007. The Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals ruledfavor of the City of Houston in September 2007 adlags were filed seeking a stay age
enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance wfita United States Supreme Court in conjunctiorn lite request that the United St
Supreme Court hear an appeal of the Fifth Circoitr€of Appeals ruling. The Supreme Court refusetdar the appeal.

Additionally, the Company filed on behalf of threEour club locations in Houston state court lawsgieeking judicial review of the results
the amortization process contained within the Cadoe. The amortization process was abated in 88880 the possible multiplicity of co
actions. The final order by the Trial Court resdltin the termination of the abatement and allottedamortization process to continue
provided in the Ordinance. Trial on the amortizatcases was held on April 23 and 24, 2008. Attrelusion of the trial, the Court ruled t
the amortization awards were proper and requestat Rindings of Fact and Conclusions of Law be dgttbth to the Court as well as
Judgment in the case. The amortization award petes already expired. An appeal of the amortinateview by the Harris County Distt
Court is anticipated. The clubs will additionabgek a stay of enforcement during the appealhénetvent all efforts to stop enforcen
activity fail and the City of Houston elects to erde the judgment, the Company, as well as evergratimilarly situated sexually orien
business located within the incorporated area afdttm, Texas, will have to either cease providingenor semiude entertainment or deve
alternate methods of operating. In such eventCihiapany presently intends to clothe the Compaeytertainers in a manner to eliminate
need for licenses and to take such steps as thenaubject to SOB ordinance compliance. Approxétyal?2.6% of the Company’clut
operations revenues for the six months ended March 31, 2@4® in Houston, Texas. The ruling could have genel adverse impact on |
Company’s operations, but it is unknown at thisetim
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11. LITIGATION - continued
TEXAS STATE PATRON TAX

Beginning January 1, 2008, the Companykxas clubs became subject to a new state lawiriregithe Company to collect a $5 surcharge
every club visitor. A lawsuit was filed by the TeexEntertainment Association, an organization tlwthe Company is a member, alleging
fee amounts to be unconstitutional tax. On Marg@hZD08, the Judge of the District Court of Tra®isunty, Texas ruled that the new state
violates the First Amendment to the United Stateadfitution and is therefore invalid. The judgerder enjoined the State from collectin
assessing the tax. The State has appealed thitscading. In Texas, when cities or the State gigtice of appeal, it operates as a supers
and suspends the judgment, including the injunctitherefore, the judgment of the District Courhiat be enforced until the appeals
completed. Given the suspension of the judgméet State has opted to collect the tax pending ppea. The Company has paid the ta
the first calendar quarter under protest and exqebtise tax in the accompanying financial statemefite Company plans to file a lawsui
demand repayment of the taxes.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Dallas Club Acquisition

On April 11, 2008, the Comparg/wholly owned subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (DsllJdnc., completed the acquisition of 100% of idgiel
and outstanding partnership interest (the "Parmersnterest”) of Hotel Development Fexas, Ltd, a Texas limited partnership

"Partnership”) and 100% of the issued and outstendiembership interest (the "Membership Interest"HD-Texas Management, LLC
Texas limited liability company, the general partoéthe Partnership (the "General Partner") framyGolding, Kenneth Meyer, and Cha
McClure (the "Sellers"). The Partnership owns apdrates an adult entertainment cabaret known as Ekeecutive Club” (the "Club"), locat
at 8550 North Stemmons Freeway, Dallas, Texas 792%¥ "Real Property”). As part of the transactitt,e Companys wholly owne:
subsidiary, RCI Holdings, Inc. ("RCI"), also acaqdrthe Real Property from DPC Holdings, LLC, a Tehaited liability company ("DPC").

At closing, the Company paid a total purchase poicg3,802,050 for the Partnership Interest and Blenrship Interest, which was paid thro
the issuance of 50,694 shares of the Commargstricted common stock to each of Messrs. Gglditeyer and McClure, for an aggregate |
of 152,082 shares (collectively, the "Rick's Cluba&s") to be valued at $25.00 per share. As cersidn for the purchase of the F
Property, RCI paid total consideration of $5,699,9%hich was paid (i) $4,250,000 payable $610,0d0@ash and $3,640,000 through
issuance of a five year promissory note (the "Pssory Note") and (iii) the issuance of 57,918 sharkethe Compang' restricted commc
stock (the "Rick's Real Property Shares") to beiedlat $25.00 per share. The Promissory Note liet@rest at a varying rate at the greatt
(i) two percent (2%) above the Prime Rate or @yen and on&alf percent (7.5%), and is guaranteed by Rick&sErmc Langan, individuall
At Closing, the Parties entered into an AmendmenPurchase Agreement solely to provide for theeBlto set aside 10,500 Rick's C
Shares under an Escrow Agreement for the offseéuéin liabilities of the Partnership.
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12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - continued

At Closing, the Sellers entered into Lock-Up/Leakt Agreements pursuant to which on or after orar péter the closing date, the Sellers ¢
have the right, but not the obligation to have Rigkurchase from Sellers an aggregate of 3,621eShgar month (the "Monthly Club Share
calculated at a price per share equal to $25.0GIpere ("Value of the Rick's Club Shares") unttteaf the individual Sellers has receive
total of $1,267,350 from the sale of the Rick'stC&hares. At the Comparsyelection during any given month, the Company mitlyer bu'
the Monthly Club Shares or, if the Company eleaistno buy the Monthly Club Shares from the Selléhen the Sellers shall sell the Mont
Club Shares in the open market. Any deficiency ketwthe amount which the Sellers receive from &he af the Monthly Club Shares and
Value of the Rick's Club Shares shall be paid & @mpany within three (3) business days of the détsale of the Monthly Club Sha
during that particular month. The Compasngbligation to purchase the Monthly Club Sharemfthe Sellers shall terminate and cease al
time as the Sellers have received an aggregateofc8,802,050 from the sale of the Rick's Clula&s and any deficiency.

Additionally, at Closing, DPC entered into a Lock/Ueak-Out Agreement pursuant to which on or after one yéi@r the closing date, DI
shall have the right, but not the obligation to éaick's purchase from DPC 1,379 Shares per mahth "Monthly Real Estate Share:
calculated at a price per share equal to $25.06Ieze ("Value of the Rick's Real Estate Sharestl) DPC has received a total of $1,447,
from the sale of the Rick's Real Estate Shareshé&tCompanys election during any given month, the Company eitlyer buy the Month
Real Estate Shares or, if the Company elects nbtiyahe Monthly Real Estate Shares from DPC, DB shall sell the Monthly Real Est
Shares in the open market. Any deficiency betwéenamount which DPC receives from the sale of tlomtkly Real Estate Shares and
Value of the Rick's Real Estate Shares shall be [paithe Company within three (3) business dayb®fiate of sale of the Monthly Real Es
Shares during that particular month. The Compswligation to purchase the Monthly Real Estatar&hfrom DPC shall terminate and c«
at such time as DPC has received an aggregateofcal447,950 from the sale of the Rick's ReahtesShares and any deficiency.

Finally, at Closing each of the Sellers entered/@ year NonCompetition Agreement with the Company pursuanitich they agreed not
compete with the Company in Dallas County or arjg@eht county.

Media Acquisitions

On April 15, 2008, the Compars/’'wholly owned subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (Me#ioldings), Inc., a Texas corporation ("RCI Med
acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding constak (the "ED Stock") of ED Publications, IncTexas corporation ("ED"), 100% of 1
issued and outstanding common stock (the "TEEZEKSt@f TEEZE International, Inc., a Delaware camton ("TEEZE") and 100% of tl
issued and outstanding membership interest (theritdeship Interest”) of Adult Store RCI Media MagegiLLC, a Georgia limited liabili
company.

ED Publications, Inc.

Under the terms of a Purchase Agreement betweerViDatt ("Waitt"), RCI Media and Rick's Cabaret Imational, Inc. ("Rick's") dated Ap
15, 2008 (the "ED Purchase Agreement"), the Companged to pay Waitt the following considerationtfte purchase of the ED Stock:

(i) $300,000 cash at closing;
(i) $200,000 cash payable in 6 months; and

(iii) The issuance of 8,696 shares of restrictethitmn stock valued at $23.00 per share (the "CloShayes").
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12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - continued

Additionally, during the three (3) year period falling the Closing Date (the "Earn Out Period"), Wahall be entitled to earn additio
consideration (the "Additional Consideration") gf to $2,000,000 (the "Maximum Amount") consisting$®00,000 cash (the “Cash&nc
65,217 shares of restricted common stock value®28t00 per share (the "Earn Out Shares"), based thg earnings before income
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") of RCI Mad RCI Media will pay the Maximum Amount of the ditional Consideration to tl
Seller if RCI Media's EBITDA during the three (3ar period following the Closing Date totals anraggte of $2,400,000. At the end of €
twelve (12) month period after the Closing Date,| R@dia shall determine its EBITDA and shall payWitt any such portion of tl
Additional Consideration as has been earned. Thsi@ Shares and Earn Out Shares are collectieédyred to as the "Rick's Shares".

At Closing, Waitt entered into a Lock-Up/Le&kit Agreement with the Company pursuant to whiclooafter one year after the closing «
with respect to the Closing Shares, or on or afésen (7) months from the date of issuance withe@sto the Earn Out Shares, if any, W
shall have the right, but not the obligation to déawith respect to the Earn Out Shares, if any, ¥/¢aill have the right, but not the obligatio
have Rick's purchase from Waitt 5,000 Rick's Shpezsnonth (the "Monthly Shares"), calculated ptiae per share equal to $23.00 per s
("Value of the Rick's Shares") until Waitt has riged an aggregate of $1,700,000 (i) from the séka® Rick's Shares sold in the open me
or in a private transaction or otherwise, andt{i® payment of any deficiency (as defined in the FiDchase Agreement) by Rick's. At
Companys election during any given month, the Company either buy the Monthly Shares or, if the Comparectd not to buy the Montt
Shares from Waitt, then Waitt shall sell the MoptBhares in the open market. Any deficiency betwleeramount which Waitt receives fr
the sale of the Monthly Shares and the Value oRink's Shares shall be paid by the Company wittniee (3) business days of the date of
of the Monthly Shares during that particular morithe Companys obligation to purchase the Monthly Shares fromit¥\éaall terminate ar
cease at such time as Waitt has received an aggregal of $1,700,000 from the sale of the Ri&¢®gres and any deficiency (as defined i
ED Purchase Agreement).

At Closing, Waitt also entered a three (3) year Eyyment Agreement with RCI Media (the "Employmergréement”) pursuant to which
will serve as President. The Employment Agreemeaterels through April 15, 2011, and provides foramual base salary of $250,C
Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Waitalso eligible to participate in all benefit plansintained by the Company for salai
employees. Under the terms of the Employment AgesgmMr. Waitt is bound to a confidentiality prois and cannot compete with

Company upon the expiration of the Employment Agreet.

TEEZE/Adult Store RCI Media

Under the terms of a Purchase Agreement between Qanetta ("Cornetta"), Waitt, RCl Media and Ricklated April 15, 2008 (tl
"TEEZE/ASB Purchase Agreement"), the Company agteegghy the following consideration to Cornetta afditt for the purchase of t
TEEZE Stock and the Membership Interest:

(i) an aggregate of $200,000 cash at closing; and

(i) the issuance of 6,522 shares of restrictedroom stock to each of Messrs. Waitt and Cornettaafioaggregate of 13,044 shares of restr
common stock to be valued at $23.00 per share'Rivi's TEEZE Shares").

22




Table of Contents

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008
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Pursuant to the TEEZE/ASB Purchase Agreement, @iter one year after the closing date, each ofskéedVaitt and Cornetta shall have
right, but not the obligation to have Rick's pumhshe Rick's TEEZE Shares calculated at a pricsetmre equal to $23.00 per share ("Valu
the Rick's TEEZE Shares") until Messrs. Waitt aroiriétta have each received $150,000 (i) from the afathe Rick's TEEZE Shares sold
them,regardless of whether sold to Rick's, sold in theromarket or in a private transaction or otherwasel (i) the payment of any deficier
(as defined in the TEEZE/ASB Purchase AgreementiRizk's. At the Compang’election during any given month, the Company wittyel
buy the Rick's TEEZE Shares or, if the Companyteleot to buy the Rick's TEEZE Shares, then Caanatitd/or Waitt shall sell the Ric
TEEZE Shares in the open market. Any deficiencyvbeh the amount which Cornetta or Waitt receivemfthe sale of the Rick's TEE
Shares and the Value of the Rick's TEEZE Shardttshaaid by the Company within three (3) busingags of the date of sale of the Ri
TEEZE Shares during that particular month. The Camyfs obligation to purchase the Rick's TEEZE Shared strminate and cease at s
time as Waitt and Cornetta have each received $08Grom the sale of the Rick's TEEZE Shares anyddaficiency.

At Closing, Cornetta entered a five year Noampetition Agreement with the Company pursuantiich he agreed not to compete with
Company either directly or indirectly with TEEZE SR, RCI Media, Rick's or any of their affiliates Ipyblishing any sexually orient
industry trade print publications, with the exceptdf a publication known as "Xcitement" which igmently owned and operated by Cornetta.

Las Vegas Club Acquisition

On April 17, 2008, the Company entered into an ABsechase Agreement (the "Asset Purchase Agreé&nrmmsuant to the terms of whi
the Companys subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (Las Vegas), (ttee "Purchaser”), will acquire 100% of the asgtte "Purchased Assets")
DI Food and Beverage of Las Vegas, LLC, a Nevadédd liability company ("DI Food" or the "Sellertywned by it which are associatec
used in connection with the operation of an adulegainment cabaret known as "SCORES" (the "Clubtated at 3355 Procyon Street,
Vegas, Nevada 89102 (the "Real Property"). As phtthe transaction, the Purchaser and DI Foodalslb enter into an Option Agreement
"Option Agreement") pursuant to which either pargy exercise the option to purchase the Real PyopEhe Asset Purchase Agreen
provides for the transaction to close on or befanee 10, 2008.

At closing, the Company will pay a total purchasieg of $21,000,000 for the Purchased Assets imotué16,000,000 cash payable at clo
and the issuance by Rick's Cabaret International, ("'Rick's") of a $5,000,000 convertible debeatbearing simple interest of four perc
(4%) per annum (the "Convertible Debenture"). Trane&rtible Debenture shall be payable commencingrs€7) months after the Clos
Date (as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreemsritllaws: twentyfive (25) equal monthly principal payments of $2) in cash or by tl
conversion of 10,000 shares of Rick's restrictadmoon stock at the option of the holder of the Catible Debenture, plus interest payabl
cash. The $16,000,000 cash payment and ConveD#ibenture are collectively referred to as the "Rase Price".

The Asset Purchase Agreement also provided thetinehaser deposit $250,000 into an escrow acdthat’'Escrow Amount") pursuant t
written Escrow Agreement with the Seller. In therthat the Closing occurs, the Escrow Amountldietredited against the cash portio
the Purchase Price. The Escrow Agreement provhsiftthe Purchaser, through no fault of the Selil®es not complete the acquisitiot
provided in the Asset Purchase Agreement, the iSetial be entitled to receive the Escrow Amourliagdated damages.
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Upon closing of the transaction, certain of the ers and managers of DI Food will enter a fjar agreement not to compete with the 1
by operating an establishment serving liquor anaviging live female nude or semiide adult entertainment in Clark County, Nev
provided, however that the Ndbempetition Agreement shall specifically exclude sat forth on an exhibit to be attached theraty, ligense:
casino properties and any existing operating bsgsitigat serves liquor and provides live female rardeeminude adult entertainment in Cl;
County, Nevada.

At Closing, the Purchaser and DI Food will enténithe Option Agreement, expiring January 11, 2@iksuant to which either party n
exercise the option to purchase the Real Propeetyiqusly granted under the existing Real Estateske The Option Agreement shall proy
that either the Purchaser or DI Food may exerdigeoption to purchase the Real Property (the "@ptidn the event that the Purche
exercises the Option, then the Purchaser shalt fraRood the option to purchase approximately {&pacres located on the south portio
the Real Property for $11,000,000. In the event Eid-ood exercises the Option, then DI Food shadht the Purchaser the option to purc
approximately two and onlealf (2.5) acres of the Real Property, plus théding where the Club is located for $12,000,000.cAssideratio
for the Purchaser entering into the Option AgreemihFood or its assignee, will agree to pay Paser $100,000 per month for the terr
the Option Agreement.

Simultaneously with the Closing, it is intendedttBd Food will agree to contingently assign and ®étotel Development, LLC, a Neve
limited liability company ("Deco") will agree to quire, subject to said contingent assignment, fldrirood, the Convertible Debenture and
Option Agreement for $9,000,000 payable by the ettec of a Promissory Note from Deco to Seller (tBeco Promissory Note") payable:
$5,000,000 payable in twenfire (25) equal monthly principal payments of $2W), plus interest computed at the rate of fouceer (4%
payable in cash, with the first monthly payment degen (7) months after closing, which payment pedormance shall be guaranteec
Rick's; (ii) $2,000,000 of the indebtedness arisinger the Deco Promissory Note shall be payabty-five (45) days after the expiration
any appeal period during which no appeal has bigahdfter DI Food has applied for and obtainedreaFZoning Approval for a change for-
Real Property which would allow the continued ofieraof the Club as well as allow construction tfier improvements for residential anc
hotel purposes at the Real Property (the "FinalZdehing Approval”); and (iii) the remaining $2,000 of indebtedness under the D
Promissory Note shall be due and payable to DI Remiive (12) months following the payment of the&liH1 Zoning Approval payment. T
Deco Promissory Note shall be secured by the eshtassignment of the Convertible Debenture aedptedge of the Option Agreeme
Neither the $2,000,000 portion of the Deco Promigdtote set forth in (ii) above nor the $2,000,30tion of the Deco Promissory Note
forth in (iii) above shall be guaranteed by Rick's.

In April 2008, the holders of convertible debentucenverted $825,000 into 125,953 shares of thepaogis restricted common stock.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Opa&tions.

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our audited consolidated financial statatseand related notes thereto included in
this quarterly report.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT AND INFORMATION

The Company is including the following cautionatgtement in this Form 1QSB to make applicable and take advantage of tfeetsabo
provision of the Private Securities Litigation Refo Act of 1995 for any forwartéboking statements made by, or on behalf of,
Company. Forwardboking statements include statements concerniagsplobjectives, goals, strategies, future eventgsedormance ar
underlying assumptions and other statements, wéniehother than statements of historical facts.talresstatements in this Form IP8B arn
forward-looking statements. Words such as "expetiglieves,” "anticipates,”rthay,” and "estimates” and similar expressions riended t
identify forwardiooking statements. Such statements are subjetske and uncertainties that could cause actuallteeto differ materiall
from those projected. Such risks and uncertairgiesset forth below. The Company's expectatibeefs and projections are expresse
good faith and are believed by the Company to tewveasonable basis, including without limitatiorgnagement's examination of histor
operating trends, data contained in the Comparmgserds and other data available from third partieg, there can be no assurance
management's expectation, beliefs or projectiotisregult, be achieved, or be accomplished. Initaadto other factors and matters discu
elsewhere herein, the following are important festiat, in the view of the Company, could caus¢enel adverse affects on the Compa
financial condition and results of operations: tis&s and uncertainties relating to our Internetgrations, the impact and implementation of
sexually oriented business ordinances in the jiotisths where our facilities operate, competitieetbrs, the timing of the openings of o
clubs, the availability of acceptable financingftod corporate expansion efforts, and the deperalendkey personnel. The Company ha
obligation to update or revise these forward-logkitatements to reflect the occurrence of futuenessor circumstances.
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GENERAL
As of March 31, 2008, we conducted our busineswindifferent areas of operation:

1. We own and operate upscale adult nightclubsregprimarily businessmen and professionals. @ghtclubs offer live adult entertainme
restaurant and bar operations. We own and opelatereadult nightclubs under the name "Rick’'s Cethand "XTC" in Houston, Austin, F
Worth and San Antonio, Texas; Minneapolis, Minnasdtew York, New York, and Philadelphia, PennsylaanNe also operate three ups
venues that cater especially to urban professiphainessmen and professional athletes calledith Onyx "in Houston, Texas and Charlo
North Carolina. In August, 2007, we converted Glub Onyx location in San Antonio, Texas to "Enctaus,” which is a club for adults w
enjoy alternative lifestyles. Currently, our newalyquired club in Miami Gardens, Florida, operag$ Tootsies Cabaret. “

2. We have the following Internet activities:

a) We currently own two adult Internet membership Wailes at www.couplestouch.comand www.xxxpassword.com We acquir
www.xxxpassword.corsite content from wholesalel

b) We operate an online auction site www.naughtybata.c This site provides our customers with the oppaty to purchase adi
products and services in an auction format. Wae earenues by charging fees for each transactiodwzied on the automated s

Our nightclub revenues are derived from the saldicpfor, beer, wine, food, merchandise, cover cbsrgnembership fees, indepen:
contractors' fees, commissions from vending and Afilchines, valet parking, and other products amdicgs. Our internet revenues
derived from subscriptions to adult content inténwebsites, traffic/referral revenues, and comrissiearned on the sale of products
services through Internet auction sites, and adhgvities. Our fiscal year end is September 30.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MA RCH 31, 2008 AS COMPARED TO THE THREE MONTHS
ENDED MARCH 31, 2007

For the three months ended March 31, 2008, we badatidated total revenues of $15,464,260 comptoezbnsolidated total revenues
$7,569,589 for the three months ended March 317280 increase of $7,894,671 or 104.29%. The aserén total revenues was prims
attributable to the increase in revenues generbjedur new clubs in Fort Worth, Texas and Miami @ems, Florida in the amount
$7,290,352 and by the increase in revenues gedebateour other locations in the amount of $609,189,8.24% increase; offset by
decrease in internet operations in the amount gf9%ta 2.70% decrease, from a year agmtal revenues for same-location-sapeiod o
club operations increased to $7,995,795 for theettmonths ended March 31, 2008 from $7,386,686&nre period ended March 31, 2007
8.25% increase. The increase was primarily atizile to the overall increase in revenues in ouip cperations.
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The cost of goods sold for the three months endadcM31, 2008 was 10.56% of total revenues compardd®.71% for the three mon
ended March 31, 2007. The decrease was due pgniathe ability to obtain volume discounts, esplg in our club in Miami Gardens. T
cost of goods sold for the club operations for tiree months ended March 31, 2008 was 10.66% cadpar12.79% for the three mon
ended March 31, 2007. The cost of goods sold aminternet operations for the three months edarth 31, 2008 was 1.54 % compare
9.54% for the three months ended March 31, 200% dost of goods sold for same-location-sgreged of club operations for the th
months ended March 31, 2008 was 11.30%, compard.89% for the same period ended March 31, 2007.

Payroll and related costs for the three months @hdizrch 31, 2008 were $3,297,158 compared to $20586or the three months ended Mz
31, 2007. The increase was primarily due to aolditf the new clubs. Payroll for same-location-sgreriod of club operations decrease
$1,712,286 for the three months ended March 318 Zfim $1,759,956 for the same period ended Mach2B807. Management currer
believes that its labor and management staff lemedsappropriate.

Other general and administrative expenses forhteetmonths ended March 31, 2008 were $6,170,16%aed to $3,723,903 for the th
months ended March 31, 2007. The increase wadfisagrily the result of the addition of new locai®in Miami Gardens, Florida and F
Worth, Texas, which resulted in increases in taes permits, charge card fees, rent, advertisingnaarketing, legal and professional, indi
operating expenses, insurance, and utilities. &heseased expenses were also a result of increagenues from our operations.

Interest expense for the three months ended Match2@08 was $676,673 compared to $328,454 for liheetmonths ended March
2007. The increase was attributable to our obigimew debt to finance the purchase and renovafidine new clubs. As of March 31, 20
the balance of long-term debt was $24,787,135 costp@ $12,963,232 a year earlier.

Net income for the three months ended March 3182@8s $2,605,380 compared to $492,344 for the timeeths ended March 31, 2007.
increase in net income was primarily due to thedase in revenues generated by our same-locationssseriod club operations and by
new clubs in Miami Gardens, Florida and Fort Woitkxas. Income before income taxes for same-locatameperiod of club operatiol
increased to $1,718,932 for the three months ehtedh 31, 2008 from $1,316,929 for the same pegivded March 31, 2007, or by 30.53%.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARC H 31, 2008 AS COMPARED TO THE SIX MONTHS ENDEL
MARCH 31, 2007

For the six months ended March 31, 2008, we hadalmated total revenues of $26,418,598 comparedotwsolidated total revenues
$14,599,347 for the six months ended March 31, 2@@7increase of $11,819,251 or 80.96%. The iserém total revenues was prima
attributable to the increase in revenues generbjedur new clubs in Miami Gardens, Florida and Pafbrth, Texas in the amount
$10,324,459 and by the increase in revenues gexebst our other locations in the amount of $1,518,7 10.66% increase; offset by
decrease in internet operations in the amount &f9D, a 6.01% decrease, from a year ago. Toiehtes for same-location-sarperiod o
club operations increased to $15,750,638 for themginths ended March 31, 2008 from $14,233,866&&one period ended March 31, 20C
10.66% increase. The increase was primarily atizifie to the overall increase in revenues in auy operations.
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The cost of goods sold for the six months endedcM&1, 2008 was 11.26% of total revenues compard® 70% for the six months ent
March 31, 2007. The decrease was due primarilgecability to obtain volume discounts, especiailpur club in Miami Gardens. The cos
goods sold for the club operations for the six rhergnded March 31, 2008 was 11.37% compared ta&%f8r the six months ended Ma
31, 2007. The cost of goods sold from our inteaprations for the six months ended March 31, 2088 3.08% compared to 7.19% for
six months ended March 31, 2007. The cost of geotts for same-location-sanperiod of club operations for the six months enlfiedch 31
2008 was 11.57%, compared to 12.85% for the samedoended March 31, 2007.

Payroll and related costs for the six months erdacth 31, 2008 were $5,883,634 compared to $4,827dr the six months ended March
2007. The increase was primarily due to additibrihe new clubs. Payroll for same-location-sapeeiod of club operations decrease
$3,403,766 for the six months ended March 31, 2008 $3,425,847 for the same period ended March28D7. Management currer
believes that its labor and management staff lemedsappropriate.

Other general and administrative expenses for ithensnths ended March 31, 2008 were $10,624,298pened to $7,204,799 for the
months ended March 31, 2007. The increase wadfisagrily the result of the addition of new locai®in Miami Gardens, Florida and F
Worth, Texas, which resulted in increases in taes permits, charge card fees, rent, advertisingnaarketing, legal and professional, indi
operating expenses, insurance, and utilities. &heseased expenses were also a result of increagenues from our operations.

Interest expense for the six months ended Marcl2@a8 was $1,138,556 compared to $654,017 foritheenths ended March 31, 2007. °
increase was attributable to our obtaining new ttefihance the purchase and renovation of the ciabs.

Net income for the six months ended March 31, 20@8 $4,388,652 compared to $844,964 for the sixthsoanded March 31, 2007. ~
increase in net income was primarily due to thedase in revenues generated by our same-locatéonegseriod club operations and by
new clubs in Miami Gardens, Florida and Fort Woikexas. Income before income taxes for same-locatameperiod of club operatiol
increased to $3,698,682 for the six months endedtivial, 2008 from $2,399,370 for same period edarth 31, 2007, or by 54.15%.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At March 31, 2008, we had working capital of $6®2, ompared to a deficit of $1,030,472 at Septer80e2007. The increase in work
capital was primarily due to increases in cashaash equivalents and prepaid expenses and othrentassets, offset by increases in acct
payable and accrued liabilities as a result oféased cash flow from operations, stock option éses¢ longterm debt borrowings, a
common stock issuances.

Net cash provided by operating activities in thersbnths ended March 31, 2008 was $6,435,712 cadpar$1,303,374 for the six mon
ended March 31, 2007. The increase in cash prdviade operating activities was primarily due to ine® from operations excludi
depreciation.

We used $20,623,910 of cash in investing actividiesng the six months ended March 31, 2008 contptres911,904 during the six mon
ended March 31, 2007. The increase was principhiby/to the acquisition of the club in Miami GargieRlorida on November 30, 2007. C
of $14,542,855 was provided by financing activitiesing the six months ended March 31, 2008 conmtptres5,264,281 cash provided dui
the six months ended March 31, 2007. The incregmsash provided by financing activities is priniyathe result of common stock issuance
raise capital for acquiring the Florida club.
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We require capital principally for construction acquisition of new clubs, renovation of older cligl investments in technology. We 1
also utilize capital to repurchase our common stxckart of our share repurchase program.

Included in the Compang’deferred tax liabilities at March 31, 2008 is 8D2,000 representing the tax effect of indefitited intangible
assets from club acquisitions which are not deblectior tax purposes. These deferred tax liabgitwill remain in the Company’balanc
sheet until the related clubs are sold.

On November 19, 2007, the Company completed a teriplacement of equity securities solely to acd¢estinvestors. Pursuant to the pri
placement, the Company issued 1,165,000 shardseo€ompanys restricted common stock at a price of $14.00gbare for a total gro
offering price of $16,310,000 with net proceedsapproximately $15,000,000 to the Company after egps. Pursuant to the terms of
transaction, the Company filed a registration statet on February 14, 2008, which became effectalridary 27, 2008. The offer and sal
the common stock was made pursuant to exempti@ms fhe registration requirements of the Act pursdarSection 4(2) and Rule 506
Regulation D promulgated thereunder. All of theeoffand sales of the common stock were made exelysd “accredited investorsag suc
term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D)iffers and sales not involving a public offerinfhe purchasers purchased the securitie
their own account and not with a view towards arrésale. The private placement was conducted witheneral solicitation or advertising.

We have not established lines of credit or finagoither than the above mentioned notes payableoanexisting debt. There can be
assurance that we will be able to obtain additidimaincing on reasonable terms in the future, dlatshould the need arise.

On September 16, 2003, the Company was authorigéd board of directors to repurchase up to ariteel $500,000 worth of our comm
stock. No shares have been purchased under #ris pl

We believe that the adult entertainment industgndard of treating entertainers as independentraciots provides us with safe har
protection to preclude payroll tax assessment fmr [years. We have prepared plans that we belgllgrotect our profitability in the eve
that sexually oriented business industry is reguiineall states to convert dancers who are nowgaddent contractors into employees.

The sexually oriented business industry is higldynpetitive with respect to price, service and lmrgtas well as the professionalism of
entertainment. Although management believes tleaake wellpositioned to compete successfully in the futunereé can be no assurance
we will be able to maintain our high level of nameeognition and prestige within the marketplace.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

We have not experienced a material overall impaarnfinflation in our operations during the pastesal years. To the extent permittec

competition, we have managed to recover increassts chrough price increases and may continue teadoHowever, there can be
assurance that we will be able to do so in theréutu
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SEASONALITY

Our nightclub operations are affected by seasaabfs. Historically, we have experienced redusaenues from April through Septem
with the strongest operating results occurringriyi®ctober through March. Our experience to dadécates that there does not appear to
seasonal fluctuation in our Internet activities.

GROWTH STRATEGY

We believe that our nightclub operations can camito grow organically and through careful entripimarkets and demographic segm
with high growth potential. Our growth strategy(ia) to open new clubs after careful market redeglb) to acquire existing clubs in locati
that are consistent with our growth and incomeeatr@nd which appear receptive to the upscalefolmula we have developed, as is the
with the acquisitions of the clubs in Austin andtP&/orth, Texas, Miami Gardens, Florida, and Plélatiia, Pennsylvania; (c) to form jo
ventures or partnerships to reduce stgrtand operating costs, with us contributing eqintghe form of our brand name and manage
expertise; (d) to develop new club concepts thatcansistent with our management and marketingsskd) to acquire real estate in connec
with club operations, although some clubs may Heased premises; and/or (f) to enter into licemsigreements in strategic locations, as i
case with the license agreement with Rick’s Buekioss Sociedad Anonima in Argentina.

Thus far, during fiscal year 2008, we purchased iight club operations and the remaining 49% oftlagofor $34,997,711. The acquisiti
were funded as follows $18,986,000 in cash, $10,000,000 pursuant to twared promissory notes in the amount of $5,000&4Xth to th
sellers, 230,000 shares of common stock, $701 74kt forgiveness, plus estimated transactiorsaafs$125,000. For the six months er
March 31, 2008, the two acquired nightclubs hadltoevenues of approximately $8,163,000 and a nebme before income tax
approximately $3,686,000.

During fiscal year 2007, we purchased two nightchperations for $9,033,877. The acquisitions wareled by the issuance of 125,
shares of our restricted common stock, $5,500,0@@sh and $2,400,000 in debt. For the six mosrtlded March 31, 2008, the nightclubs
total revenues of approximately $2,662,000 andtdoss before income tax of approximately $107,000.

During fiscal 2006, we acquired three existing mifjib operations for a total cost of $3,865,00(hede acquisitions were funded prime
through indebtedness, $3,195,000, and cash, $87.0/08r the six months ended March 31, 2008, thegeclub operations had total reven
of approximately $1,278,000 and a net loss of agprately $394,000.

We continue to evaluate opportunities to acquing nghtclubs and anticipate acquiring new locatitmet fit our business model as we t
done in the past.

We also expect to continue to grow our Internefipoenters. We plan to focus on highargin Internet activities that leverage our marig
skills while requiring a low level of statp cost and ongoing operating costs and refinetand our Internet sites for better positionin
organic search rankings amongst the major sea¥idars. We will restructure affiliate programspmvide higher incentives to our curr
affiliates to better promote our Internet sitesjlevhctively seeking new affiliates to send trafficour Internet sites.

Subsequent to the quarter ended March 31, 200&ogaired a media group which we believe will enaldeto (a) create new market
synergies with major industry product suppliers) €xpand our brand awareness through partnershigs national advertisers and ligt
companies; (c) set up point of sale marketing imwoction with print advertising; (d) improve buikuor pricing; and (e) diversify our rever
and income streams while remaining within our caympetency. In conjunction with the transaction, we also acgdiinumerous websites t
we will incorporate into our internet division tacrease our brand aware and potential revenues.
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The acquisition of additional clubs, internet opierss, and/or media group will require us to obtadditional debt or issuance of our comi
stock, or both. There can be no assurance thatillvbee able to obtain additional financing on reaable terms in the future, if at all, shc
the need arise. An inability to obtain such additil financing could have an adverse effect ongoowth strategy.

Subsequent Events
Dallas Club Acquisition

On April 11, 2008, our wholly owned subsidiary, REhtertainment (Dallas), Inc., completed the adtjais of 100% of the issued a
outstanding partnership interest (the "Partnershtigrest") of Hotel DevelopmentTexas, Ltd, a Texas limited partnership (the "Rahip"
and 100% of the issued and outstanding memberskgpest (the "Membership Interest") of HI@xas Management, LLC, a Texas lim
liability company, the general partner of the Parship (the "General Partner”) from Jerry Goldikgnneth Meyer, and Charles McClure 1
"Sellers"). The Partnership owns and operates aft adtertainment cabaret known as "The Executid'Cthe "Club"), located at 8550 No
Stemmons Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75247 (the "Regiepty"). As part of the transaction, our wholly reed subsidiary, RCI Holdings, It
("RCI"), also acquired the Real Property from DP@ldihgs, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (HZ").

At closing, we paid a total purchase price of $3,8680 for the Partnership Interest and Membershiprést, which was paid through
issuance of 50,694 shares of our restricted comsbtmek to each of Messrs. Golding, Meyer and McCléwe an aggregate total of 152,(
shares (collectively, the "Rick's Club Shares"péovalued at $25.00 per share. As consideratiothiopurchase of the Real Property, RCI
total consideration of $5,697,950, which was p#&id4,250,000 payable $610,000 in cash and $3,800t6rough the issuance of a five
promissory note (the "Promissory Note") and (igtissuance of 57,918 shares of our restricted ammstock (the "Rick's Real Prope
Shares") to be valued at $25.00 per share. TheiBsory Note bears interest at a varying rate agteater of (i) two percent (2%) above
Prime Rate or (i) seven and ohalf percent (7.5%), and is guaranteed by RickésEnic Langan, individually. At Closing, the Pagientere
into an Amendment to Purchase Agreement solelyduoige for the Sellers to set aside 10,500 RickisoGhares under an Escrow Agreer
for the offset of certain liabilities of the Partakip.

At Closing, the Sellers entered into Lock-Up/Lealst Agreements pursuant to which on or after oree géter the closing date, the Sellers ¢
have the right, but not the obligation to have Rigurchase from Sellers an aggregate of 3,621eShwar month (the "Monthly Club Share
calculated at a price per share equal to $25.0GIpere ("Value of the Rick's Club Shares") untitteaf the individual Sellers has receive
total of $1,267,350 from the sale of the Rick'siC8hares. At our election during any given monté,may either buy the Monthly Club She
or, if we elect not to buy the Monthly Club Shafiesm the Sellers, then the Sellers shall sell trentily Club Shares in the open market. .
deficiency between the amount which the Sellersivecfrom the sale of the Monthly Club Shares dmed\talue of the Rick's Club Shares s
be paid by us within three (3) business days ofdaie of sale of the Monthly Club Shares during therticular month. Our obligation
purchase the Monthly Club Shares from the Sellbedl $erminate and cease at such time as the Sdilere received an aggregate tot:
$3,802,050 from the sale of the Rick's Club Sharesany deficiency.

Additionally, at Closing, DPC entered into a Lock/Ueak-Out Agreement pursuant to which on or after one wé&r the closing date, DI
shall have the right, but not the obligation to éaRick's purchase from DPC 1,379 Shares per mahth"Monthly Real Estate Share:
calculated at a price per share equal to $25.08Ieze ("Value of the Rick's Real Estate Sharest) DPC has received a total of $1,447,
from the sale of the Rick's Real Estate Shareuhtkelection during any given month, we may eitngy the Monthly Real Estate Shares ¢
we elect not to buy the Monthly Real Estate Shémas DPC, then DPC shall sell the Monthly Real Est8hares in the open market. 4
deficiency between the amount which DPC receivemfthe sale of the Monthly Real Estate Shares had/alue of the Rick's Real Est
Shares shall be paid by us within three (3) busimiays of the date of sale of the Monthly Real tes&hares during that particular month.
obligation to purchase the Monthly Real Estate &nhdérom DPC shall terminate and cease at suchas@PC has received an aggregate
of $1,447,950 from the sale of the Rick's Real tes&hares and any deficiency.
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Finally, at Closing each of the Sellers entered/a year Non€ompetition Agreement with us pursuant to whichythgreed not to compe
with us in Dallas County or any adjacent county.

Media Acquisitions

On April 15, 2008, our wholly owned subsidiary, REitertainment (Media Holdings), Inc., a Texas coation ("RCI Media"), acquired 10C
of the issued and outstanding common stock (the SEizk") of ED Publications, Inc., a Texas corpomat"ED"), 100% of the issued a
outstanding common stock (the "TEEZE Stock") of ZTEHnternational, Inc., a Delaware corporation (EE") and 100% of the issued &
outstanding membership interest (the "Membershigrést”) of Adult Store RCI Media Magazine, LLCGaorgia limited liability company.

ED Publications, Inc.

Under the terms of a Purchase Agreement betweenVaiti ("Waitt"), RCI Media and Rick's Cabaret Imtational, Inc. ("Rick's") dated Ap
15, 2008 (the "ED Purchase Agreement"), we agregay Waitt the following consideration for the pliase of the ED Stock:

(i) $300,000 cash at closing;
(i) $200,000 cash payable in 6 months; and
(iii) The issuance of 8,696 shares of restricteshicmn stock valued at $23.00 per share (the "CloShayes").

Additionally, during the three (3) year period @lling the Closing Date (the "Earn Out Period"), Wahall be entitled to earn additio
consideration (the "Additional Consideration") gé to $2,000,000 (the "Maximum Amount") consisting$500,000 cash (the Cash") i
65,217 shares of restricted common stock value®28t00 per share (the "Earn Out Shares"), based thg earnings before income
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") of RClI Mad RCI Media will pay the Maximum Amount of the ditional Consideration to tl
Seller if RCI Media's EBITDA during the three (3ar period following the Closing Date totals anraggte of $2,400,000. At the end of €
twelve (12) month period after the Closing Date,| R@dia shall determine its EBITDA and shall payWitt any such portion of tl
Additional Consideration as has been earned. Thei@ Shares and Earn Out Shares are collectieédyred to as the "Rick's Shares".

At Closing, Waitt entered into a Lock-Up/Le&kit Agreement with the Company pursuant to whictooafter one year after the closing «
with respect to the Closing Shares, or on or afésen (7) months from the date of issuance withe®sto the Earn Out Shares, if any, W
shall have the right, but not the obligation to éa&ick's purchase from Waitt 5,000 Rick's Sharesymnth (the "Monthly Shares"), calcula
at a price per share equal to $23.00 per sharduy®\a the Rick's Shares") until Waitt has receie@daggregate of $1,700,000 (i) from the
of the Rick's Shares sold in the open market ar mivate transaction or otherwise, and (ii) thgrpant of any deficiency (as defined in the
Purchase Agreement) by Rick's. At our electionmy@ny given month, we may either buy the Monthhai®s or, if we elect not to buy
Monthly Shares from Waitt, then Waitt shall seletMonthly Shares in the open market. Any deficiebeyween the amount which W.
receives from the sale of the Monthly Shares aedMiilue of the Rick's Shares shall be paid by ukimnthree (3) business days of the da
sale of the Monthly Shares during that particulanth. Our obligation to purchase the Monthly Shdresn Waitt shall terminate and ceas
such time as Waitt has received an aggregate @btgl, 700,000 from the sale of the Rick's Sharek amy deficiency (as defined in the
Purchase Agreement).
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At Closing, Waitt also entered a three (3) year Exyipent Agreement with RCI Media (the "Employmergréement") pursuant to which
will serve as President. The Employment Agreematerels through April 15, 2011, and provides foramual base salary of $250,C
Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Waitalg eligible to participate in all benefit plangimtained by us for salaried employ:t
Under the terms of the Employment Agreement, Mr.ittMa bound to a confidentiality provision and ocah compete with us upon 1
expiration of the Employment Agreement.

TEEZE/Adult Store RCI Media

Under the terms of a Purchase Agreement between Qamnetta ("Cornetta”), Waitt, RCl Media and Récklated April 15, 2008 (tl
"TEEZE/ASB Purchase Agreement"), we agreed to payfallowing consideration to Cornetta and Waitt tiee purchase of the TEEZE St
and the Membership Interest:

(i) an aggregate of $200,000 cash at closing; and

(ii) the issuance of 6,522 shares of restrictedroom stock to each of Messrs. Waitt and Cornettaafioaggregate of 13,044 shares of restr
common stock to be valued at $23.00 per share'Rivi&'s TEEZE Shares").

Pursuant to the TEEZE/ASB Purchase Agreement, aiter one year after the closing date, each ofdkedVaitt and Cornetta shall have
right, but not the obligation to have Rick's purmhshe Rick's TEEZE Shares calculated at a pricstmre equal to $23.00 per share ("Valu
the Rick's TEEZE Shares") until Messrs. Waitt arwir@tta have each received $150,000 (i) from the afethe Rick's TEEZE Shares sold
them, regardless of whether sold to Rick's, solthénopen market or in a private transaction oentfise, and (ii) the payment of any deficie
(as defined in the TEEZE/ASB Purchase AgreementRigk's. At our election during any given month, may either buy the Rick's TEE.
Shares or, if we elect not to buy the Rick's TEERtares, then Cornetta and/or Waitt shall sell tlek'R TEEZE Shares in the open mar
Any deficiency between the amount which CornettdMaitt receives from the sale of the Rick's TEEZtai®s and the Value of the Ric
TEEZE Shares shall be paid by us within three (&ifess days of the date of sale of the Rick's TEEBBAares during that particular moi
Our obligation to purchase the Rick's TEEZE Shatedl terminate and cease at such time as WaitCamdetta have each received $150
from the sale of the Rick's TEEZE Shares and afigidacy.

At Closing, Cornetta entered a five year NOampetition Agreement with us pursuant to whichaesed not to compete with us either dire
or indirectly with TEEZE, ASB, RCI Media, Rick's any of their affiliates by publishing any sexuatifiented industry trade print publicatic
with the exception of a publication known as "Xaitent" which is currently owned and operated by €tien

Las Vegas Club Acquisition

On April 17, 2008, we entered into an Asset PurehAgreement (the "Asset Purchase Agreement"’) potsieathe terms of which o
subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (Las Vegas), Ince (tRurchaser"), will acquire 100% of the assete (fhurchased Assets") of DI Food
Beverage of Las Vegas, LLC, a Nevada limited ligbitompany ("DI Food" or the "Seller") owned byvithich are associated or uset
connection with the operation of an adult entertant cabaret known as "SCORES" (the "Club"), latate3355 Procyon Street, Las Ve
Nevada 89102 (the "Real Property"). As part of ttasaction, the Purchaser and DI Food will alsteremto an Option Agreement (i
"Option Agreement”) pursuant to which either partpy exercise the option to purchase the Real PropEne Asset Purchase Agreen
provides for the transaction to close on or befonge 10, 2008.
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At closing, we will pay a total purchase price @1$00,000 for the Purchased Assets including 16000 cash payable at closing anc
issuance by Rick's Cabaret International, Inc.¢kRI") of a $5,000,000 convertible debenture beasimple interest of four percent (4%)
annum (the "Convertible Debenture”). The ConvegtibDebenture shall be payable commencing seven ¢nths after the Closing Date
defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement) as follawentyfive (25) equal monthly principal payments of $2) in cash or by tl
conversion of 10,000 shares of Rick's restrictedroon stock at the option of the holder of the Catible Debenture, plus interest payabl
cash. The $16,000,000 cash payment and ConveD#ibenture are collectively referred to as the "Rase Price".

The Asset Purchase Agreement also provided thetinehaser deposit $250,000 into an escrow acdthat’'Escrow Amount") pursuant t
written Escrow Agreement with the Seller. In therwthat the Closing occurs, the Escrow Amountldietredited against the cash portio
the Purchase Price. The Escrow Agreement provhsiftthe Purchaser, through no fault of the Selil®es not complete the acquisitiot
provided in the Asset Purchase Agreement, the iSeHial be entitled to receive the Escrow Amourliagdated damages.

Upon closing of the transaction, certain of the hers and managers of DI Food will enter a fjar agreement not to compete with the 1
by operating an establishment serving liquor anaviging live female nude or semiide adult entertainment in Clark County, Nev
provided, however that the Nddempetition Agreement shall specifically exclude sat forth on an exhibit to be attached theraty, ligense:
casino properties and any existing operating bsgsitigat serves liquor and provides live female rardeeminude adult entertainment in Cl;
County, Nevada.

At Closing, the Purchaser and DI Food will enténithe Option Agreement, expiring January 11, 2@ifsuant to which either party n
exercise the option to purchase the Real Propeetyiqusly granted under the existing Real Estateske The Option Agreement shall proy
that either the Purchaser or DI Food may exerdigeoption to purchase the Real Property (the "@ptidn the event that the Purche
exercises the Option, then the Purchaser shalt fraRood the option to purchase approximately t@pacres located on the south portio
the Real Property for $11,000,000. In the event EHd-ood exercises the Option, then DI Food shadht the Purchaser the option to purc
approximately two and onlealf (2.5) acres of the Real Property, plus théding where the Club is located for $12,000,000.cAssideratio
for the Purchaser entering into the Option AgredmihFood or its assignee, will agree to pay Pasgr $100,000 per month for the terr
the Option Agreement.

Simultaneously with the Closing, it is intendedttBd Food will agree to contingently assign and ®étotel Development, LLC, a Neve
limited liability company ("Deco") will agree to quire, subject to said contingent assignment, fldrirood, the Convertible Debenture and
Option Agreement for $9,000,000 payable by the ettec of a Promissory Note from Deco to Seller (tBeco Promissory Note") payable:
$5,000,000 payable in twenfire (25) equal monthly principal payments of $2W), plus interest computed at the rate of fouceer (4%
payable in cash, with the first monthly payment degen (7) months after closing, which payment pedormance shall be guaranteec
Rick's; (ii) $2,000,000 of the indebtedness arisinger the Deco Promissory Note shall be payabtg-five (45) days after the expiration
any appeal period during which no appeal has bigahdfter DI Food has applied for and obtainedreaFZoning Approval for a change for-
Real Property which would allow the continued ofieraof the Club as well as allow construction tfier improvements for residential anc
hotel purposes at the Real Property (the "FinalZehing Approval"); and (iii) the remaining $2,000( of indebtedness under the D
Promissory Note shall be due and payable to DI Remiive (12) months following the payment of the&liH1 Zoning Approval payment. T
Deco Promissory Note shall be secured by the eshtassignment of the Convertible Debenture aedptedge of the Option Agreeme
Neither the $2,000,000 portion of the Deco Promig#tote set forth in (ii) above nor the $2,000,30tion of the Deco Promissory Note
forth in (iii) above shall be guaranteed by Rick's.
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In April 2008, the holders of convertible debentucenverted $825,000 into 125,953 shares of thepaogis restricted common stock.

Iltem 3. Controls and Procedures.

Eric S. Langan, our Chief Executive Officer and ditent, and Phillip K. Marshall, our Chief Finarlc@@fficer, have concluded that ¢
disclosure controls and procedures are appropaatt effective. They have evaluated these contold procedures as of March
2008. There has been no change in our interndtaloover financial reporting during the last fiscmarter that has materially affected, ¢
reasonably likely to materially affect, our intekeantrol over financial reporting.

PART Il OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings
SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESS ORDINANCE OF HOUSTON, AS

In January 1997, the City Council of the City ofdston passed a comprehensive new Ordinance rewyldt® location of and the cond
within Sexually Oriented Businesses (the “Ordindhc@he Ordinance established new minimum distancesSfrually Oriented Busines:
may be located from schools, churches, playgrowamt other sexually oriented businesses. There wer@rovisions in the Ordinan
exempting previously permitted sexually orientedibasses from the effect of the new Ordinance.

The Ordinance provided that a business which wagedea renewal of its operating permit due to clesnig distance requirements undel
Ordinance would be entitled to continue in operafar a period of time (the “Amortization Periodfthe owner were unable to recoup, by
effective date of the Ordinance, its investmentthe business that was incurred through the dat¢hefpassage and approval of
Ordinance. The Company’s nightclub in the Compargduth Houston location had a valid temporary pidioense. The permits for t
Company’s north Houston location and our BeringvBtbcation have expired.

In May 1997, the City of Houston agreed to defeplementation of the Ordinance until the constitodlity of the entire Ordinance w
decided by court trial. In February 1998, the Wsstrict Court for the Southern District of Texddpuston Division, struck down cert
provisions of the Ordinance, including the prowisimandating a 1,500 foot distance between a cldabsahools, churches and other sext
oriented businesses, leaving intact the provisiotin® 750 foot distance as it existed prior to @relinance. The City of Houston appealec
District Court’s rulings with the Fifth Circuit Couof Appeals.

In November 2003, a three judge panel from thehRifircuit Court of Appeals published their Opiniahich affirmed the Trial Cours ruling
regarding lighting levels, customer and dancer i distances and licensing of dancers and.sfie Court of Appeals, however, did
follow the Trial Courts ruling regarding the distance from which a cludyrbe located from a church or school. The Colu#tppeals held thi
a distance measurement of 1,500 feet would be dpif@n a showing by the City of Houston that iirals that there were alternative <
available for relocating clubs could be substaatlat The case was remanded for trial on the issiuéhe alternative sites.

The trial commenced on December 4, 2006 and coadloth December 12, 2006. The Trial Court rendésgddgment in favor of the City
Houston on January 31, 2007. The Trial Court fotlvad the City of Houston met its burden that the@ege sufficient alternate sites availabl
relocate all of the existing businesses in 199Fe Trial Court found the 1997 ordinance constingicand enforceable. Pdsial motions wer
heard and the relief sought, a stay against enfogog was denied by the Trial Court. An appeatht Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals w
timely filed. The Fifth Circuit granted a stagmaing appeal. Oral argument was held before iftle €ircuit Court of Appeals on August
2007. The Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals ruledfavor of the City of Houston in September 2007 adlags were filed seeking a stay age
enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance wfita United States Supreme Court in conjunctiorn lite request that the United St
Supreme Court hear an appeal of the Fifth Circoitr€of Appeals ruling. The Supreme Court refusetdar the appeal.
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Additionally, the Company filed on behalf of threEour club locations in Houston state court lawsssieeking judicial review of the results
the amortization process contained within the Cadae. The amortization process was abated in #0680 the possible multiplicity of co
actions. The final order by the Trial Court resdltin the termination of the abatement and allottedamortization process to continue
provided in the Ordinance. Trial on the amortiaatcases was held on April 23 and 24, 2008. Attrelusion of the trial, the Court ruled t
the amortization awards were proper and requestad Rindings of Fact and Conclusions of Law be dtibohto the Court as well as
Judgment in the case. The amortization award petes already expired. An appeal of the amortinateview by the Harris County Distt
Court is anticipated. The clubs will additionalgek a stay of enforcement during the appealhénetvent all efforts to stop enforcen
activity fail and the City of Houston elects to erde the judgment, the Company, as well as evergratimilarly situated sexually orien
business located within the incorporated area afdttm, Texas, will have to either cease providingenor semiude entertainment or deve
alternate methods of operating. In such eventCitvapany presently intends to clothe the Compaeytertainers in a manner to eliminate
need for licenses and to take such steps as thenaubject to SOB ordinance compliance. Approxétyal?2.6% of the Company’clut
operations revenues for the six months ended March 31, 2868 in Houston, Texas. The ruling could have &ene adverse impact on 1
Company’s operations, but it is unknown at thisetim

TEXAS STATE PATRON TAX

Beginning January 1, 2008, our Texas clubs becarbjeat to a new state law requiring us to colle@basurcharge for every club visitor.
lawsuit was filed by the Texas Entertainment Asatioch, an organization to which we are a membdegalg the fee amounts to
unconstitutional tax. On March 28, 2008, the Judigthe District Court of Travis County, Texas milhat the new state law violates the |
Amendment to the United States Constitution anthésefore invalid. The judge’order enjoined the state from collecting or asingsthe
tax. The State has appealed the ceurtling. In Texas, when cities or the State gigtice of appeal, it operates as a supersedeasuapenc
the judgment, including the injunction. Therefdies judgment of the District Court cannot be eoéal until the appeals are completed. G
the suspension of the judgment, the State has dptedllect the tax pending the appeal. We havd fiee tax for the first calendar qua
under protest and expensed the tax in the accormgafigancial statements. We plan to file a lawsoidemand repayment of the taxes.

ltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds

During our quarter ended March 31, 2008, in additio the transaction previously disclosed on Forl{, 8e completed the followir
transactions in reliance upon exemptions from tegfien under the Securities Act of 1933, as amédr{tiee "Act") as provided in Section 4
thereof. All certificates issued in connection witiese transactions were endorsed with a resgitéigend confirming that the securities ct
not be resold without registration under the Actaor applicable exemption from the registration meuents of the Act. None of t
transactions involved a public offering, undermtgtidiscounts or sales commissions. We believeghah person was a “qualifiedtivesto
within the meaning of the Act and had knowledge axplerience in financial and business matters, lwhlowed them to evaluate the me
and risks of our securities. Each person was krmigdable about our operations and financial conditio
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In February 2008, we issued 1,826 shares of constunk for $21,918 of principal and interest oweé twonvertible debenture holder.

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit 31.1— Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Rick'Cabaret International, Inc. required by Rule 43a(1) or Rule 15d 44(a) o
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adoptesuaumt to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Ac0602

Exhibit 31.2— Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Rick’Cabaret International, Inc. required by Rule 43a(1) or Rule 15d 44(a) o
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adoptesuaumt to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Ac0602

Exhibit 32.1-- Certification of Chief Executive Officer of RitkCabaret International, Inc. pursuant to Seci66 of the Sarbanedxley Acl
of 2002 and Section 1350 of 18 U.S.C. 63.

Exhibit 32.2-- Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Ritk Cabaret International, Inc. pursuant to Secfiff of the Sarbane®xley Acl
of 2002 and Section 1350 of 18 U.S.C. 63.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdéport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Date: May 8, 200 By: /s/ Eric S. Langa
Eric S. Langar
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Date: May 8, 200 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshall
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial @#r
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric S. Langan, Chief Executive Officer and Rdest of Rick's Cabaret International, Inc., certifat:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-QSB of Ricl's Cabaret International, In
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtede a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the small business issuef,eend for, the periods presente
this report;

4. The small business iss’'s other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contis

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the small business issuer and h

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdunecaused such disclosure controls and procedorée designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the small business issuer, includingcisisolidated subsidiaries, is m
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isfg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&garting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed un
my supervision, to provide reasonable assuranceardag the reliability of financial reporting anthet preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small bssinissuer's disclosure controls and procedurespaggented in this report ¢
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report basec
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the $fmasiness issuer's internal control over finanogglorting that occurred during
small business issuer's most recent fiscal yeahdmmaterially affected, or is reasonably likelynaterially affect, the small busin
issuer's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The small business issugrdther certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxd on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdve!
financial reporting, to the small business issueidependent registered public accounting firm #red audit committee of the sir
business issuer's board of directors (or persorisrp@ang the equivalent functions

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the smallibeiss issuer's ability to record, process, sumraair report financial informatic
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the small busine
issuer's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 8, 200: By: /s/Eric S. Langa
Eric S. Langar

Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Phillip K. Marshall, Chief Financial Officer dRick’s Cabaret International, Inc., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-QSB of Ricl's Cabaret International, In
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtede a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the small business issuef,eend for, the periods presente
this report;

4. The small business iss’'s other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contis

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the small business issuer and h

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdunecaused such disclosure controls and procedorée designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the small business issuer, includingcisisolidated subsidiaries, is m
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isfg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&garting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed un
my supervision, to provide reasonable assuranceardag the reliability of financial reporting anthet preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small bssinissuer's disclosure controls and procedurespaggented in this report ¢
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report basec
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the $fmasiness issuer's internal control over finanogglorting that occurred during
small business issuer's most recent fiscal yeahdmmaterially affected, or is reasonably likelynaterially affect, the small busin
issuer's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The small business issugrdther certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxd on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdve!
financial reporting, to the small business issueidependent registered public accounting firm #red audit committee of the sir
business issuer's board of directors (or persorisrp@ang the equivalent functions

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the smallibeiss issuer's ability to record, process, sumraair report financial informatic
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the small busine
issuer's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 8, 200: By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshall
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial @#r




L
EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Rick’altaret International, Inc. (the "Company") on FA®QSB for the quarter ended March 31,

2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, Eric.&ngan, Chief Executive Officer and

President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. 81350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly ggats, in all material respects, the financial dood and results «
operations of the Company.

Date: May 8, 200: By: /s/Eric S. Langa
Eric S. Langar

Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Rick’altaret International, Inc. (the "Company") on FA®RQSB for the quarter ended March 31,
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, Phiki. Marshall, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1380adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarlb@rkes Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly ggats, in all material respects, the financial dood and results «

operations of the Company.

Date: May 8, 200: By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshall
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financialfioér




